
Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
Tuesday, April 2, 2019, 6:00pm 

 
Agenda 

 
1. Call to Order – Chairman Doug Theroux. 
2. Approval of the Agenda. 
3. Approval of the Minutes from the February 12 and March 5, 2019 Meetings of the Board. 
4. Discussion Related to an Application for a Conditional Zoning District on the Property Commonly 

Known as 37 Brown Street. 
5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council on the 

Aforementioned Conditional Zoning District. 
6. Discussion Related to an Initial Zoning Request of R-12 for the Property Commonly Known as 

135 Monticello Road.  
7. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council on the 

Aforementioned Proposed Zoning Map Amendment. 
8. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board. 

 Public Information Sessions Briefing  
 Incorporation of Recent Text Amendments (Update Board’s Ordinance Books) 

9. Adjournment. 



Agenda Item 3 
Minutes 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Minutes 

 
Joint Meeting of Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 

Tuesday, February 12, 2019 – Town Hall  
 

The Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board for the Town of Weaverville met for a Joint Meeting on Tuesday, 
February 12, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, 
Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, 
Councilman Jeff McKenna, and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Councilman Andrew Nagle was absent.  

Planning and Zoning Board members present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Vice Chairman Gary Burge, Board Members: 
Catherine Cordell, Peter Stanz and Steve Warren, Alternate Board Members: John Chase and Tom Balestrieri 

Staff present: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, and Town Planner James Eller. 

1. Call to Order  
Mayor Root called the meeting to order on behalf of Town Council at 6:00pm. 
Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order on behalf of the Planning and Zoning Board at 6:00pm. 

 
2. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 

A. Review of Project Status and Timeline 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that she and the Town Planner Eller have attempted to keep Town Council and the 
Planning and Zoning Board up to date with where they were with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Right now, they 
are right on track with the timeline and the next step is to start the drafting phase for writing the narrative, which Mr. 
Eller has completed. Jackson noted that, with the adoption of the FY 2019-2020 Budget Calendar by Town Council at 
their last meeting, it appears that Town Council has been doubled booked. So it brings up the question as to whether 
Town Council should push its review out until the budget is adopted. This will allow the Planning and Zoning Board 
more time to review the plan and will just delay the approval of Town Council until August, instead of in June. 
Jackson presented an amended timeline (see attached) for Town Council’s consideration and by consensus of Town 
Council the project will proceed based on the amended timeline. 

B. Process for Town Council to Review Draft Plan 
Mayor Root mentioned that it might be helpful if Council members went to the Planning and Zoning Board meetings 
when they are reviewing the draft plan to bring themselves up to speed and to hear the board members comments.  
  
Councilman McKenna commented that the draft materials could be passed out earlier, so that Council can have an 
understanding of the substance of the material and then discuss any further pressing details at the meeting.  
 
C. Process for P&Z Board to Review Draft Plan 
Chairman Theroux commented that since we aren’t starting from scratch on the land use plan, he believes that the 
review of the comprehensive land use project can be presented all at once. If it were to be broken down into sections, 
it would take a lot more meetings. Board Member Steve Warren discussed how many sections each member would be 
responsible for if it were to be divided among the board members. It was agreed that the Planning and Zoning Board 
will look at this when the draft plan is presented to them for review. 



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

 
D. Decisions regarding Public Input Strategy for Public Review of Draft Plan 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that Public Input strategy is really critical for these projects and when staff was 
going through this process for the Table of Uses, staff tried to get as much public awareness out to the public, so they 
could come and comment. Unfortunately, there weren’t a lot of comments or involvement received. Town Planner 
Eller noted that all required public notices were recorded, as well as sending out a press release, and staff even made 
yellow signs to grab the citizen’s attention. Still only one individual came out and commented at the public hearing.  
 
Vice Chairman Burge commented that his biggest concern is making sure that the public is aware about this draft 
plan, so public input can be gathered. 
 
Board member Cordell discussed possibly adding a survey to the water bills so that more data could be collected. 
There could be a bar code placed on the survey, so that the outside city limit customers could be separated from the 
inside city limit customers. 
 
Mayor Root mentioned that staff should reach out to the Homeowners Associations and churches to give them an 
abbreviated version, so that they are aware of what is going on and can schedule a meeting for any questions.  
 
Board member Peter Stanz commented on the surveys and asked what the end goal of the survey was, is it to gather 
information or data, inform citizens about the land use plan, or get good participation from the community.  
 
Alternate Board member John Chase also noted that it could be more harmful than helpful to have individuals answer 
a survey if they aren’t educated on the land use plan.  It might be more beneficial, if we researched how to inform the 
citizens about the land use plan.  

 
After lengthy discussion, consensus was made between Town Council and the Planning and Zoning Board to schedule 
two public input/ information meetings at various times, and to reach out to Homeowners’ Associations and churches 
about the material being presented, so that they can reach out to us to schedule a meeting with a representative for any 
questions they may have.  Consensus was reached to not send out a community survey but instead seek some public 
input from citizens attending the information meetings.  
 

3. Desired and Required Role of Planning and Zoning Board 
A. Review of Statutory Duties and Code-Imposed Duties of P&Z Board 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson gave a brief overview of the materials that were handed out to the boards on the 
agenda. The table on page 2, lists in general what the Planning and Zoning Board is charged with statutorily by North 
Carolina law and the ordinances that Town Council has put into place. The administration capacity of the Planning 
and Zoning Board is listed on page 3 along with the subdivision ordinances that the board does a lot with by 
reviewing both minor and major subdivisions. Lastly, the yellow part on the table, shows how the board has more of 
an advisory role in the zoning process.   
 
B. Experience of P&Z Board During Statutory and Code-Imposed Reviews 
Peter Stanz commented that after the last meeting on the subdivision, the Planning and Zoning board had been asked 
to consider zoning a property to be annexed as R-2, but the project was nowhere near the requirements of the Town’s 
R-2 district. He expressed confusion as to what the value of zoning is for the Town. Mayor Root mentioned that as far 
as the annexation process went, Council took some steps to allow the developer to be annexed into Town. However, 
the land had to have an underlining zoning attached to it for annexation. Council had a 3-2 vote in January against the 
annexation so no further steps were taken. 
 
Chairman Theroux mentioned that this is the same issue that came up on the Maple Trace development where they 
were given water allocations for annexation, and then Council found out how the plan of the development and denied 
the annexation. Down the road, these developments can still come back and ask to be annexed if they want too.   
 



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

Gary Burge noted that he is thinking more about the next year or two into future and would like to get back to doing 
some planning, instead of just zoning and rezoning, so more mixed use districts and densities can be determined.  
 
Board Member Steve Warren noted that zoning should be subordinate to planning, since it is only one tool, along with 
subdivisions. It can be frustrating when you’re creating these entire non-conforming lots based on area regulations. He 
believes that we need to have more tools and resources available and would love to see a transitional district, less 
conditional zoning districts, and more tools to go to for development proposals. Plus, our ordinances have to support 
future plans.  
 
Board member Cordell commented that they try to be like a black and white board, where they have ordinances and a 
land use plan, and they are supposed to try to tie together whatever is presented to them.  If it doesn’t fit, then they 
have to find a way to make it fit and they never know if it will be approved by Council.  
 
Town Planner Eller noted that the Barkley Terrace development was the last annexation left that was combined with 
water allocation. 
 
Alternate member Tom Baliesteri commented that he has only been on the board for a short period of time, but looks 
forward to more meetings in the future on discussing planning issues to make this a more livable Town that we’re 
proud of.  
 
Alternate member John Chase stated that he has been on the board for a few years now and realizing how complex 
these issues are and the rapid growth occurring in Weaverville, but trying to digest everything and present concise 
information to Town Council is very intriguing and he enjoys the work.   
 
Chairman Theroux mentioned that establishing a Technical Review Committee for another set of eyes, instead of just 
Town Planner Eller might be valuable.  Eller has already started reaching out to the Public Works department and Fire 
Department to have them review the document before it goes to the Planning and Zoning Board.  
 
C. What information is Helpful to Town Council for Decision-Making 
Councilman McKenna mentioned that it would be beneficial if there was more communication between the two 
boards when it came to presenting the recommendations to Town Council. Especially since Town Council usually 
only has a limited amount of time to look over the whole packet. Councilman Fitzsimmons commented to put more 
information and any concerns in the recommendation letter for Council, since sometimes the packets can be quite 
large and it can be difficult to cover all the material. Mayor Root mentioned that if the letter is completed before the 
agenda is done, then it can be circulated to Town Council before to allow more time. 
 
D. Balance Between Planning and Administrative Review 
Steve Warren asked Mr. Eller how he feels about the Planning and Zoning Board looking over his shoulder on these 
issues. Town Planner Eller mentioned that the planning review adds an incredible amount of time to the process, when 
he, together with the Fire Department and Public Works Department, can sit down and review a project in about 15 
minutes. He expressed frustration that the actual process takes about three months when the work can be done in less 
than a day. 
 
Town Attorney Jackson commented that there are some inefficiencies that have grown within the subdivision 
ordinance, especially with the way it is written now with having to be approved by Town Council. There are already 
two layers of review, before it gets to Council on the three different plans: concept plan, preliminary plan and final 
plan. Mayor Root noted that they are open to other options, but were informed by staffs predecessor’s that this was the 
process needed for approval.  
  
E. New and Existing Zoning Districts for Staff/P&Z to study 
Consensus was made that the following districts should be looked at by staff and the Planning and Zoning Board: 
high-density single family residential district, office/institutional district, mixed use district, transitional district and 
the C-1 Central Business District. 



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

 
Board member Steve Warren mentioned that the Board of Adjustments also develops the land use patterns, so it isn’t 
completed just by these two groups. Some of their actions do affect us, especially like the Creekside development in 
an I-1 zoning district. 
 
F. Geographic Areas for Staff/ P&Z to Study 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned some specific geographic areas that should be looked at further, which 
were mentioned on page 5. These areas include the central business area, the north main street/five points area, 
Monticello corridor, and the Reems creek road corridor. We need to be more proactive and ensure that the central 
business district remains thriving, enjoyable area.  

 
Board member Peter Stanz mentioned an idea to have another professional in Economic Development and Planning 
look over our plans. His reasoning was that it might be beneficial since the Planning and Zoning Board members are 
amateurs and it might help with the time constraints that Town Planner Eller is under. 

 
4. Adjournment. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn the Town Council meeting; Councilman Fitzsimmons 
seconded and all of Town Council voted to adjourn the Council’s meeting at 8:00 p.m. 

Board member Cordell made the motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning and Zoning Board; Board member 
Stanz seconded and all Board members voted to adjourn the Board’s meeting at 8:00 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 
Page 1 of 3  March 5, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Minutes – Tuesday, March 5, 2019 
 

 
The Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly 
meeting at 6:00pm on Tuesday, March 5, 2019 within the Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Board Members Catherine Cordell, Peter Stanz and Steve Warren, 
Alternate Board Members John Chase and Tom Balestrieri, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town 
Attorney Jennifer Jackson and Planning Director James Eller. Vice-Chairman Gary Burge was absent.  

1. Call to Order. 

Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Upon calling the meeting to order, 
Chairman Theroux recognized alternate board member John Chase who would be serving as the acting 
chair for the meeting.  

2. Approval of the Agenda. 

Mr. Stanz motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Warren seconded and all voted 
unanimously. 

3. Approval of the Minutes from the January 3, 2019 Meeting of the Board. 

Mr. Theroux motioned to approve the minutes as presented. Ms. Cordell seconded and all voted 
unanimously. 

4. Discussion Related to a Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Five Parcels of Land Located 
Adjacent to Red Cole Drive. 

Mr. Eller presented the application to the Board and noted that the five parcels in question consist of 
4.27 and the proposed rezoning would convert the properties from C-2 to R-3. Mr. Eller also presented 
a staff report suggesting the properties may be ripe for rezoning based upon the property owner’s 
interest in developing the parcels residentially and complications specific to the site which could prove 
to be detrimental for commercial development.  

Lamar Cole, owner of one of the five parcels in question, spoke to the Board regarding his desire to 
add a home to his property. 

5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related to the 
Aforementioned Zoning Map Amendment. 



 
Page 2 of 3  March 5, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

Ms. Cordell motioned to offer a favorable recommendation to Town Council related to the proposed 
rezoning of five parcels of land on Red Cole Drive from C-2 to R-3 finding the proposed revision 
consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan and in the best interest of the public in that 
the R-3 zoning district provided parameters for the highest and best use of the properties in question. 
Mr. Stanz seconded and all voted unanimously. 

6. Discussion Related to an Application for a Conditional Zoning District on the Property 
Commonly Known as 37 Brown Street. 

Mr. Eller presented the Board with an application for a conditional zoning district for the property 
commonly known as 37 Brown Street. Said application calls for the conversion of the old college 
dormitory from its current use as a single family residence to a 16 unit (14 one bedroom, 2 two 
bedroom) multifamily residential structure.  

Mr. Eller also produced a staff report finding the density requested supported by the underlying R-2 
zoning district and a statement supporting the proposal’s compliance with the comprehensive land use 
plan. 

Acting Chairman Chase recognized members of the public who wished to speak to the Board regarding 
the proposal.  

James Shaughnessy, Chrissy Morrissey, John Bowen and Kathryn Dimaio each spoke to the Board 
regarding their opposition to the proposal. Variables such as traffic, parking, lack of sidewalks and an 
alleged negative impact on their property values were referenced in support of such a position.  

Thomas Wolfe, applicant and representative of the property owner, spoke in support of the application 
and gave the Board background on the facility which was constructed in 1917 as the Weaver College 
boy’s dormitory. Mr. Wolfe noted that the exterior of the structure was to be repaired and preserved 
and the only expansion of the footprint would be for a fire escape on the north face of the structure. 
Ownership of the individual units was discussed and Mr. Wolfe offered that the determination over the 
ownership of individual units had not been determined. Ms. Jackson noted that under North Carolina 
law a jurisdiction may not determine the ownership of a residential unit. Mr. Wolfe noted that the 
water allocation for the project had been submitted to public works and that he is actively working 
with Public Works Director Pennell on the request. 

In response to the concerns shared related to parking and traffic Mr. Eller provided the Board with 
evidence that the property could be developed much more intensely with a subdivision configuration 
within the R-2 zoning district and relayed portions of ordinance which prohibited parking within any 
traveled portion of a roadway.   

Following an extensive conversation the Board determined that additional information related to the 
property should be considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board in April. Such 
information included an elevation of the structure complete with architectural stylings and established 
height; a determination on the parking lot and retaining wall, if any; the placement of a dumpster on 
the parcel for privately contracted garbage collection; landscaping and sidewalk considerations; 
stormwater and grading considerations; and signs to be placed on the property, if any.   



 
Page 3 of 3  March 5, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related to the 
Aforementioned Conditional Zoning District. 

No such motion was made as the matter is to be discussed further during the April meeting of the 
Board. 

8. Update on the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

Ms. Jackson noted that two public information sessions had been scheduled for Thursday, March 21 
from 12-3 and Tuesday, March 26 from 5-8. 

9. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board. 
 
Mr. Eller informed the Board that a voluntary annexation petition and initial zoning request had been 
filled with staff for the property at 135 Monticello Road commonly known as the Riverside Stump 
Dump. Mr. Eller further described that the Board would be asked to offer a recommendation to Town 
Council on the initial zoning of R-12 requested at their next regularly scheduled meeting in April. 
 
Ms. Jackson recapped with the Board its desire to transition to more of a planning role and the 
consensus was gained toward same with Town Council. The suggestion was made that once the update 
of the comprehensive land use plan was further formed the Board would be seeing some 
recommendations from staff to streamline subdivision review. 

10. Adjournment. 
 
Mr. Theroux motioned to adjourn. Mr. Stanz seconded and all voted unanimously. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Doug Theroux, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 

John Chase, Acting Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Deputy Town Clerk 
 



Agenda Items 4&5 
37 Brown Street – Conditional Zoning District 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 







Sec. 36-84. - Conditional zoning district.  

(a)  Intent. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district will appropriately regulate site-specific 
impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas, however conditional zoning districts 
provide for those situations where a particular use, properly planned, may be appropriate for a 
particular site, but where the underlying general district has insufficient standards to mitigate the site-
specific impact on surrounding area.  

(b)  Use permitted. Any use may be considered for a conditional zoning district and shall be established 
on an individual basis, at the request of the property owner, according to the procedures of this 
section.  

(c)  Conditions . In establishing a conditional zoning district town council may place conditions on the 
property which set individualized standards to the site and a site plan and supporting documents 
illustrating said conditions and standards may be included in the ordinance establishing the district. 
These conditions which may be established by town council shall only be those which are necessary 
for ordinance and plan compliance and shall only address the impacts reasonably expected to be 
generated by the project. Said conditions may be proposed by town council or the applicant and 
must be mutually approved by town council and the applicant.  

(d)  Petition of request. Property may be rezoned to a conditional zoning district only in response to and 
consistent with a petition of the owners, or agents of the owners of all of the property to be included 
in the district and shall be accompanied by an petition, a statement analyzing the reasonableness of 
the proposed rezoning request by the petitioner, the established fee, and documentation as required 
by the following:  

(1)  A petition for a conditional zoning district must include a site plan and supporting information 
that specifies the actual use or uses intended for the property and any rules, regulations, and 
conditions that, in addition to all predetermined ordinance requirements, will govern the 
development and use of the property;  

(2)  A boundary survey and vicinity map showing the property's total acreage, current zoning 
classification(s), general location in relation to major streets, date and north arrow;  

(3)  Existing topography on the site and within 300 feet of the boundary of the site, and the general 
nature of the proposed topography contours shown at a maximum of five feet;  

(4)  All existing easements, reservations, rights-of-way, and any other valid restrictions on the use 
of the land;  

(5)  The number and general location of all proposed structures;  

(6)  The proposed use of all land and structures, including the number of residential units or the 
total square footage of any nonresidential development;  

(7)  All yards, buffers, screening, and landscaping and sidewalks required within the underlying 
zoning district;  

(8)  All existing and proposed points of access to public streets and the locations of proposed new 
streets;  

(9)  Delineation of areas within the floodplain;  

(10)  Proposed number and location of the signs;  

(11)  Proposed phasing, if any, and the approximate completion time for the project;  

(12)  Traffic, parking, and circulation plans, showing the proposed location and arrangement of 
parking spaces and ingress and egress to adjacent streets, existing and proposed;  

(13)  Photographs of buildings on properties within 200 feet of the subject property establishing the 
scale of the buildings within the proposed project with those surrounding;  

(14)  Information on the height of all proposed structures;  



(15)  Exterior features of all of the proposed development including but not limited to construction 
and finishing materials;  

(16)  Any supporting text and all documents presented shall constitute part of the petition.  

(e)  Approval procedures for initial CZD. Except as specifically modified by this section, the procedures 
to be followed by the town council in reviewing, granting, or denying any petition for a conditional 
zoning district shall be the same as those established for general use district zoning petitions under 
N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19. The following procedures shall also apply for the approval of conditional 
zoning districts:  

(1)  Initial consideration by town council. Petitions for conditional zoning district shall be initially 
reviewed by town council. After its initial consideration of a petition for a conditional zoning 
district, town council shall refer the request to the planning board for the full review process as 
required by state statute. Initial consideration of such petitions are intended to provide town 
council with the opportunity to express their preliminary thoughts related to the petition but shall 
not serve as a final determination on same.  

(2)  Planning and zoning review. Following an initial review by town council as set forth herein and 
in section 36-358 all conditional zoning requests shall be submitted to the town planning and 
zoning board to determine if approvals of such plans are made in consideration of identified 
relevant adopted land-use plans for the area including, but not limited to, comprehensive plans, 
strategic plans, district plans, area plans, neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other land-
use policy documents. A statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning 
shall be prepared by the town planning and zoning board for each petition for a rezoning to a 
conditional zoning district and submitted to the town council for final action on the request. Due 
to the scope and complexities which may be presented by a conditional zoning district request, 
the planning and zoning board shall have up to 180 days from its first consideration to submit its 
statement of reasonableness and recommendation to town council. If the planning and zoning 
board fails to submit such statement and/or recommendation within 180 days then the request 
shall be forwarded to town council with a record of the planning and zoning board's comments 
and town council is eligible to consider the request and take final action thereon.  

(3)  Public involvement meeting. Before a public hearing may be held by the town council on a 
petition for a conditional zoning the petitioner must file in the office of the town clerk a written 
report of at least one community meeting held by the petitioner. The report shall include, among 
other things, a listing of those persons and organizations contacted about the meeting and the 
manner and date of contact, the date, time, and location of the meeting, a roster of the persons 
in attendance at the meeting, a summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description 
of any changes to the rezoning petition made by the petitioner as a result of the meeting. In the 
event the petitioner has not held at least one meeting pursuant to this subsection, the petitioner 
shall file a report documenting efforts that were made to arrange such a meeting and stating the 
reasons such a meeting was not held. The adequacy of a meeting held or report filed pursuant 
to this subsection shall be considered by the town council but shall not be subject to judicial 
review. Notice of such a public hearing shall be given to all the property owners within 200 feet 
of the property boundaries and in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-364.  

(4)  Public hearing. As required by N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19, town council cannot take any action 
on a conditional zoning district request until such time as it has held a public hearing that has 
been properly noticed.  

(f)  District approval and ordinance. If a petition for a conditional zoning district is approved, the 
development and use of the property shall be governed by the ordinance establishing the conditional 
zoning district, the approved site plan for the district, and any additional approved rules, regulations, 
and conditions, all of which shall constitute the zoning regulations for the approved district. Each 
conditional zoning district will be given a special number, distinguishing such conditional zoning 
district from another zoning district. Each ordinance adopted by town council which establishes a 
conditional zoning district within the Town of Weaverville is hereby incorporated into this chapter as a 



separate and unique zoning district and shall be reflected on the town's zoning map. Copies of such 
ordinances shall be kept on file with the town clerk and may be reviewed upon request.  

(g)  Time limits. Time limits for the completion of the projects infrastructure and completion of 
construction shall be established on an individual basis by town council based upon the type and 
scope of development. Extensions to established time frames shall be subject to the approval of 
town council.  

(h)  Phasing of projects. Any project phasing must be reviewed and approved with the conditional 
zoning district. Phases must be shown on the site plan that is adopted in conjunction with the 
ordinance approving the conditional zoning district and the time periods related to the phasing must 
also be addressed in said ordinance.  

(i)  Guarantee of conditions. At the discretion of the town council, the council may require the property 
owner to guarantee the performance or completion of conditions included in the approved conditional 
zoning plan. Such guarantee may be in the form of:  

(1)  A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do 
business in the state;  

(2)  A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security 
for the bond;  

(3)  A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and 
deposited with the town clerk;  

(4)  Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or  

(5)  A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other 
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured 
financial institution in an account payable to the town.  

The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by town council and must be reasonable taking 
into consideration the type and scope of proposed development.  

(j)  Judicial review. Conditional zoning district decisions under this section are legislative decisions that 
are presumed valid if there is a reasonable basis for the decision.  

(k)  Future variance request. Property zoned CZD will not be able to apply for a variance on the 
approved project.  

(l)  Maintaining the zoning district. A CZD is a rezoning which represents both a text and map 
amendment and as such is maintained after the sale of the property. If the property owner wishes to 
change the approved CZD plan, all property owners within the original CZD must apply for a 
rezoning or a modification to the CZD as per section 36-84(n).  

(m)  Modifications. Minor modifications that can be approved by staff are limited to modifications that do 
not affect the property lines, do not affect the final plat and which are in substantial compliance with 
the approved plans. An extension of any time frame stated within an ordinance designating a 
conditional zoning district must be approved by town council but shall otherwise be considered a 
minor modification. All other modifications must be approved by town council and are subject to the 
procedures set out in section 36-84(n).  

(n)  Approval procedures for modifications of a CZD. Except for minor modifications that can be 
approved by staff or town council as provided in section 36-84(m), the procedures to be followed in 
reviewing, granting or denying any requested modification to the approved site plan or the CZD 
ordinance shall be the same as those established for approval of an initial CZD except that a public 
involvement meeting is not required. Staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any 
modifications that staff has approved or denied.  

(o)  Final plat approval process. All water, sewer, stormwater infrastructure, and all street, sidewalk, and 
similar improvements must be installed and verified as complete by the appropriate authority prior to 
final plat review. Once the required infrastructure is complete, the final plat will be reviewed by staff 



and the planning and zoning board for compliance with the relevant portions of the ordinance 
approving the conditional zoning district for the project. After its review the planning and zoning 
board shall submit a recommendation to town council. Town council must consider the planning and 
zoning board's findings and recommendation and, upon finding that the required infrastructure is 
complete and compliant, shall approve the final plat and authorize the recordation of same.  

Final plats must contain the following language:  

"This plat has been approved as part of a conditional zoning district and all lots shown are subject to 
all the conditions, rules and regulations governing that conditional zoning district and not subject to 
the subdivision ordinance of the Town of Weaverville. Any modification to any lot or improvement 
shown on this plat may only be accomplished as an amendment to the conditional zoning district and 
in accordance with the applicable Code provisions of the Town of Weaverville."  

(p)  Issuance of zoning permits. The zoning administrator shall not issue a zoning permit until a final plat 
has been approved and recorded.  

(q)  Noncompliance. In the event of noncompliance by a property owner or any subsequent resale or 
lease of a property for use other than that stipulated in the original CZD approval, the property owner 
would be in violation of the town zoning ordinance.  

(r)  Appeal of zoning administrator decisions concerning CZDs. Any determination made by the zoning 
administrator regarding the project and/or this conditional zoning district is appealable to the zoning 
board of adjustment. Such appeal shall be made in accordance with the procedure set forth in town 
code section 36-328(3). In addition, staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any 
appeals related to this project and/or this conditional zoning district proceeding before the zoning 
board of adjustment so that town council has the opportunity to participate as a party to the appeal 
should it wish to do so.  

( Ord. of 8-21-2017(1) , § 1(Exh. A); Ord. of 10-15-2018(1) , § 3)  









1
A1

KING

QUEEN

KING

QUEEN

KING

TV

W/D

W/DW

QUEEN

TV

TV TV

DWDW

DWWD

TV

QUEEN

DW
DW

QUEEN

Unit 101
858 SF

Unit 102
856 SF

TV

Unit 104nit 
388 SFF

Unit 106
477 SF

Unit 103Unit 103Unit 103Unit 103Unit 103
365 SF

Unit 105
350 SF

12'-6" - 50' MAX DEAD END

15
'-2

" -
 5

0
' M

A
X 

DE
A

D 
EN

D

TWO EXITS FROM FIRST
FLOOR IF MORE THAN 10 OCC
AND 75' OF TRAVEL
DISTANCE - IBC 1021

HORIZONTAL FLOOR ASSEMBLIES
SHALL BE 1 HOUR RATED - IBC 712.3
(CHECK ON STC RATINGS)

NO ELEVATOR REQUIRED -
IBC 1107.2.1

EXIT FROM SECOND FLOOR TO EXTERIOR

TENANT SEPARATION SHALL BE
1  HOUR RATED - IBC 709.3 EX2
(CHECK STC RATINGS)

1 HOUR RATED VERTICAL SHAFT, EXTEND
TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK - IBC

708.5 AND 707.5

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL
BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE
ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND
903.3.1.2

ALL CORRIDOR DOORS AND
FRAMES SHALL BE 20M
RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

ALL STAIR SHAFT DOORS
AND FRAMES SHALL BE 60M

RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

Corridor
1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

Living / Dining
13'8 x 15'3

Living / KitchenLiv
12'0 x 14'02'0 x

Living / Kitchenng / Kitchen
12'4 x 14'0

Living / KitchenLivin
12'0 x 19'60 x 19

BathBathBathBath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath
Bedroom #2

12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1
11'0 x 14'0

Bedroom
9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom
9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom
12'0 x 12'0+

Bedroom
10'0 x 9'0

Mech

Mech

Coat

Closet

Closet

ClosetClosetClosetCloset
ClosetClosetClosetCloset

Closet

Closet

Closet

MAIL BOXES

KitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchen
13'8 x 9'6

Living / Dining
13'8 x 15'3

Bedroom #2#2
12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1
11'0 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen
12'0 x 19'6

DWDW

Kitchen
13'8 x 9'613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 6

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

Mech

Mech

Coat Closet Mech

48'-0" - 50' MAX DEAD END

Bath

EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,
SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL
OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE
ABOVE



1
A2

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW
DW

QUEENEEN

Unit 205Unit 205Unit 205Unit 205Unit 205
373 SF

Unit 207
361 SF

Living / KitchenLivi
12'4 x 14'62'4 x 

Living / Kitchenng / Kitchen
12'4 x 14'6

BathBathBathBath
Bath

Bedroom
9'8 x 10'0

Bedroom
9'8 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW
DW

QUEEN

Unit 201Unit 201Unit 201Unit 201Unit 201
403 SF

Unit 203
359 SF

Living / KitchenLivin
12'0 x 14'60 x 14

Living / Kitchenng / Kitchen
12'7 x 15'6

BathBathBathBath
Bath

Bedroom
10'0 x 10'1010 0 x 10 1010 0 x 10 1010 0 x 10 10

Bedroom
10'0 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV
DW

DW

BathBathBathBath
Bath

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

QUEEN

QUEEN

Unit 204Unit 204Unit 204Unit 204
359 SF35

Unit 202
403 SF403 SF403 SF403 SF

TV

TV TV

KING

QUEEN

TV TV

DWWDW

Unit 206it 2
395 SFF

Unit 208
492 SF

Living / KitchenLivin
12'0 x 19'100 x 19

Bath

Bath

Bedroom
12'4x 12'4+

Bedroom
10'0 x 9'4

Closet

Closet

Living / Kitchen
12'0 x 19'6

TV

TV

Mech

Living / Kitcheng / Kit
12'0 x 14'6

Living / KitchenKitchen
12'7 x 15'6

BedroomBedroom
10'0 x 9'7

Bedroom
10'0 x 10'1010 0

38'-4" - 50' MAX DEAD END EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,
SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL
OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW DOUBLE DOOR IN
EXISTING WINDOW OPENING

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE



1
A3

W
D

QUEEN

QQUEENQQ

W
D

Bath

TV

TV
TV

TV

Closet

Closet

MechDW

DW

Coat

Coat

Mech

PantryPan

Unit 301
827 SF82

Unit 302
836 SF

KitchenKi
9'0 x 12'812'8

Living / Dining
14'0 x 19'0

Laundry

Bedroom
11'3 x 13'6

Bedroom
11'3 x 13'6

Living / Dining
25'0 x 14'0

Kitchen
13'6 x 8'06 x 8'0

Laundrydry

Bath

Corridor
1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

ONE EXIT FROM ATTIC FLOOR WITH 4
DWELLING UNIT MAX AND 50' TRAVEL
DISTANCE - IBC 1021 - MIGHT NEED
EGRESS WINDOWS FROM BEDROOMS
ON THIRD FLOOR WITH ONE EXIT

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL
BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE
ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND
903.3.1.2

NEW STAIR FROM SECOND FLOOR TO
ATTIC

Common Sitting









Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Brown / Lakeshore Density Analysis Prepared March 2019

Staff has prepared the following numbers for the Planning and Zoning Board’s consideration. It may be 
useful to examine the number of bedrooms within a development rather than unit number when 
considering the impact a particular development may have on existing infrastructure.  

37 Brown Lakeside Meadows Lakeshore Minor Sub 
Acres 1.918 7.9 .88 
Units Per Sq. Ft. 1 Unit per 5,222 sq. ft. 1 Unit per 13,765 sq. ft. 1 Unit per 9,583 sq. ft. 
Bedrooms Per Sq. Ft. 1 BR per 4,641 sq. ft. 1 BR per 4,588 sq. ft. 1 BR per 2,395 sq. ft. 

Here it should be noted that the new development located on Lakeshore was permitted by right as a 
minor subdivision and presents the highest density when considering bedrooms rather than units. It is 
easy to imagine a scenario where, should the existing facility be razed and the dimensional standards 
applicable to the R-2 Zoning District are applied to the property, many more bedrooms can be achieved 
on the property. 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Proposed CZD – 37 Brown 
Old College Dormitory 

Prepared February, 2019

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Zoning Analysis 

Density:  

Currently the parcel in question falls within the R-2 zoning district. The R-2 Zoning district does permit 
multifamily housing if certain variables can be found as established by the table of dimensional 
requirements. In short, a base land area of 7,500 square feet must be found with an additional 5,000 
square feet of minimum lot area (where public water and sewer is available) for each additional dwelling 
unit. The preliminary plat submitted in conjunction with the conditional zoning district application 
reports that the property consists of 1.918 acres which translates to 83,548 square feet. The amount of 
land present supports 16.2 units within the table of dimensional requirements with 16 units being 
applied for. 
 
However, when consulting the table of uses we find that multifamily dwellings with more than four units 
are not permissible within the R-2 zoning district, hence the conditional zoning district application. 
 
* This conflict of competing regulations is not lost on staff and has long been flagged for addressing * 
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it is found that this 
property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses of Downtown Core and 
Residential. These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 
 
“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the defined 
areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the uncertainties that exist 
on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the need for flexibility. And so, the 
boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than lines in the sand, and the final decisions on 
transitional land use types in these areas should be left to the good judgement of the appointed and 
elected officials that are charged with establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 
 
Given the aforementioned statement, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not 
conflict with the Town’s CLUP. 





Agenda Items 6&7 
Zoning Map Amendment – 135 Monticello Road 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 









Martin Blank
Deed Book 1607 Page 174

PIN: 9733515734

29

28

H & K Properties
Deed Book 4608 Page 665

PIN: 9733627514

Crystal Jean Ponder Hopkins &
Another Venture LLC

Deed Book 4615 Page 467
PIN: 9733721293

Leonard F. Ponder & Crystal Jean
Ponder Hopkins

Deed Book 4135 Page 87
PIN: 9733722097

HMVHN-3VHM LLC
Deed Book 4375 Page 108

PIN: 9733713521

N 71

N
03

No. 5(0.4' ag)

0.75" OP(flush)

N 5
4

112
.99
'

N 68
S
38

33
8.7
0'
Tie
on
ly

Reese Cap(0.4' ag)

Reese Cap(0.4' bg)

LINE BEARING DISTANCE

L1

L1 N 64 42.28'

L2

L2 N 37 18.74'

L3

L3 N 60 20.19'
L4 N 21 21.23'
L5 N 62 6.21'
L6 S 85 46.36'

L7

L7 S 52 11.64'

L8

L8 S 06 10.94'

L9

L9 S 40 9.10'

L10

L10 N 70 31.97'

L11

L11 S 89 34.53'

L12

L12 S 81 22.58'

L13

L13 S 59 35.78'

S 67

S 56

S 58

S 45

S 89

268.30'

12
5.
82
'

S
19

Curve Radius Arc Length Chord Bearing Chord Length

C1

C1 888.17' 164.06' S 28 163.83'

L1
4

L14 S 22 62.47'

C2 2017.39' 17.71' S 22 17.71'

N 21
58.01' Tie only

10
4.
53
'

S
09

S 63
19.91'

N 60
20.00'

N
27 51
.6
3'

N
05 21
1.
59
'15

6.
74
'

S
10

3165 +/- square feet
0.073 Acre

*Hatched area depicts an apparent gap
between right-of-way shown on Plat Book 110
Page 23 and that described in Consent
Judgement recorded in Deed Book 1284 Page
693. No recorded instrument found granting
right-of-way or conveyance of hatched area to
NC Department of Transportation.*Detail

Area of Tract
19.397 Acres

(Does not include area of apparent gap)

branch

branch

asphalt

asphalt

po
ol

po
rch

barn

shed

bl
oc
k
bu
ild
in
g

wamapa cap(0.1' ag)

wamapa cap(0.3' bg)

wamapa cap(flush)

S 35
26.88' tie only

No. 5(0.4' ag)

Posthole in Concrete Found

branch goes underground here

branch re-emerges here

gate

N 85
61.61' tie only

barbed
w
ire

chain link

woven wire

Rebar with ID Cap Found (Name on Cap)
Rebar Found (Size)
Iron Pipe Found (Description)
No 5 Rebar with ID Cap Set (EHA)
Unmarked Point
Concrete Right-of-Way Monument
Fire Hydrant

Utility Pole
Guy Wire

Storm Sewer Manhole

Woven Wire or Barbed Wire Fence

Above Grade
Below Grade
Open Pipe
Polyvinylchloride
Reinforced Concrete Pipe

ag
bg
OP
PVC
RCP

18
" R
CP

Water Valve

Gas Line Marker

S 73
1.0' tie only

Detail

See Detail Above

6" PVC Pipe filled with concrete

NC Department of Transportation
Deed Book 1284 Page 693
Project No. 6.801760

Right-of-Way Map Book 1 Page 300

Curve Table Line Table

trailer

S 17
16.24'

gravel drive

gate

Symbol and Line Legend

Chain Link Fence
Wood Stockade Fence
Overhead Electric Line
Overhead Telephone Line

Abbreviation Legend

Ed Holmes & AssociatesEHA

woven wire

woven
wire

John G. & Marta L Bodenhorst
Deed Book 1962 page 752

PIN: 9733528356

1-
sto
ry
br
ick
, s
ton
e &

wo
od
ho
us
e

woven wire

McMahan cap

1"=10'

See Detail of Hatched Area

ed
ge
of
pa
ve
m
en
t

ed
ge
of
pa
ve
m
en
t

Right-of-WayR/W

0.5" OP(0.3' ag)

brushpile

brushpilemulchpile

stumppile

debris (scattered; dense vegetation)

2180

21
70

2160

2160
2150

2150

215
0

2140

2120

2110

2100

210
0

20
90

20
80

20
70

2050

217
0

21
60

2150

21
50

21
50

2140

21
40

21
30

2130

21
20

2120

2120

2110

21
10

2100

210
0

20
90

20
80

20
70

2060

2050

2152

2154

2156

2154

2152

21
48

Invert=2151.2

Invert=2151.4

Invert=2148.2

Invert=2150.5

21
56

2152

2152

2154

2156

2156

2154

2152

2152

2058
2056

Concrete

ro
w
of
oa
ks

30" Hickory

20" Hickory

52" Oak

Twin 36" Beech

20" Hickory

Approximate tie to MSD manhole #110184 located
near the intersection of Gill Rd with Northridge
Commons Parkway. Manhole location based on
information obtained from MSD website.

Sanitary Sewer Manhole

Spigot
Well

roof

Tree (as described)

soil
road

18" RCP(damaged)

Invert=2148.9

15
" R
CP

Invert=2149.2

Invert=2149.4

porch

pool house

2154

2148

2152

2160

septic tank

2-story block &
wood frame house

grave
l

grave
l

grave
l

Approximate location
of 12" water main

Approximate location
of 12" water main

12" Water Line (approximate location)

Woods Line approximate;
drawn from aerial photo.

Woods Line approximate;
drawn from aerial photo.

Gill Road - S.R. 1791
(60' Right of Way)

G
ill
Ro
ad
- S
.R
. 1
79
1

(6
0'
R
ig
ht
of
W
ay
)

Storm Sewer Drain Inlet
Storm Sewer Pipe

S 48
1115'

edge of pavement from aerial photo

D

D

0

Mo
nti
ce
llo
Ro
ad
- S
.R
. 1
72
7

(R
igh
t o
f W
ay
va
rie
s)

33
0.
25
'

S 87

79.6
2'

S 75
31.45' Tie only

0.5" OP(0.8' ag-painted orange)

L4

L5 L6 N 83
99.09'

64.36'

S 69

88.36'

S 52

92.92'

134.52'

102.48'

254.00'

156.74'
S 10

21
50

15
" R
CP

ch
ai
n
lin
k

chain link

woven wire

ba
rb
ed
wi
re

woven wire

chain link

soil piles

S 66
2388.83'

(plat bearing)
(ground distance)

de
e d
l in
e
( ty
pi
ca
l )

Right-of-Way line from Consent Judgement
Deed Book 1284 Page 693

Right-of-Way as shown on
Plat Book 110 Page 23

C2

A

B

Plat Book PageP.B. Pg.

Branch
Ditch
Deed Line
Right-of-Way Line

Note: Gravel area approximate; lines
drawn from aerial photo and field observation.

NCGS Monument "Gill"

Exit 19

Monticello Road

Gill Rd.

U.S. 25/70

U.
S.
19
/2
3/
Fu
tu
re
I-2
6

Weaver Blvd.

M
on
tic
el
lo
R
oa
d

D11-033A



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: 135 Monticello Road 
Initial Zoning – R-12 

Prepared March 2019

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Town of 
Weaverville Fact Sheet 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Zoning Analysis 

As the Board is aware Town Council is set to consider a voluntary annexation of 135 Monticello 
Road commonly known as the Riverside Stump Dump. The parcel consists of 19.5 acres as 
shown on the voluntary annexation petition and zoning map amendment application and an 
initial zoning of R-12 is desired. With the acreage present and the density permitted within the 
desired zoning district the Town may expect approximately 234 dwelling units under these 
conditions. 
 
Such an initial zoning of R-12 provide zoning would provide contiguity of district and use with 
the neighboring developments on Weaver View Circle (constructed) and Gill Branch Road 
(approved for construction). 
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the 
analysis begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it 
is found that this property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses 
of Commercial and Rural. These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on 
page 3-2 as follows: 
 
“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the 
defined areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the 
uncertainties that exist on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the 
need for flexibility. And so, the boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than 
lines in the sand, and the final decisions on transitional land use types in these areas should be 
left to the good judgement of the appointed and elected officials that are charged with 
establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 

Additionally, found on page 2-2, it is the stated goal of the Town to “promote the stability of 
existing residential neighborhoods while fostering a diversity of housing opportunities.”  

Given each of the listed variables, it is the opinion of staff that the development proposed for 
annexation is consistent with the Town’s CLUP. 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: 135 Monticello Road 
Initial Zoning – R-12 

Prepared March 2019

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Town of 
Weaverville Fact Sheet 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Strategic Plan Compliance 

Within the Town’s Strategic Plan (SP) a parallel sentiment toward fostering a diversity of 
housing opportunities is found. Town Council identified “affordable housing – mixed income 
housing, additional housing opportunities” within a list of 3-5 year visioning found on page 3 of 
the SP. Additionally, a similar statement is made within the list of 15-20 year visioning found on 
page 4 of the SP and reads as follows, “self-sustaining, vibrant community with a mix of young, 
old, long-term and new residents with a common bond of living in a safe space that meets their 
needs.” It was found when compiling information for the update of the CLUP that the Town’s 
median age was the eldest at 52.6 years of age and home values the highest at $335,000 of all 
jurisdictions studied in both Buncombe and Madison Counties. One could reason that 
additional leased housing stock could invite a younger population to become invested in the 
Town hence forwarding the stated visions adopted by Town Council. 
 
Other Considerations 

The 2016 American Community survey provided the Town with a household size of 2.12 persons per 
household. This figure applied to the theoretical 234 units suggests that this project will grow the 
population of the Town by approximately 496 people should Town Council annex the property and grant 
the desired R-12 Zoning District. 
 
Should Town Council annex the property, said annexation would be a contiguous annexation. This 
property is also contiguous to an existing satellite annexation meaning said satellite (Hawthorne at 
Weaverville Apartments) would become contiguous as well. Therefore the total number of acres of 
satellite annexed areas would decrease to 23.38 acres down from 37.54. This would also decrease the 
percentage of total incorporated area outside of the contiguous municipal borders to from 1.8% to 1.1% 
with a statutory limitation of 10% on satellite annexations.  
 
 
 
 



Agenda Items 8 
Public Information Meetings Briefing  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Town of Weaverville  
Planning Department 

James Eller, Planning Director 
jeller@weavervillenc.org 
828-484-7002 



WHAT ARE LAND USE AND LAND USE PLANNING? 

WHAT IS A COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN? 

WHAT ARE OUR CURRENT DEMOGRAPHICS AND GROWTH TRENDS? 

WHAT ARE THE FACTORS IMPACTING GROWTH? 

HOW DOES THE TOWN REGULATE LAND USE? 



WHAT IS “LAND USE”? 
 Land use is when an area is used for a specific purpose. Land use types typically 
include: residential, commercial (including industrial uses), agricultural, recreational, 
and transportation-related. 

 Land use planning is the process of regulating the use of land in an effort to 
promote more desirable social and environmental outcomes as well as a more 
efficient use of resources. 

 NCGS 160A-383(a) specifically states that “[z]oning regulations shall be made in 
accordance of a comprehensive plan.” Much of the legislative responsibilities that 
town council has concerning land use regulations are based upon the town’s 
“comprehensive plan.” 

  

  



WHAT IS A  
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN? 

 A comprehensive land use plan is a guidance document that assists the 
Planning and Zoning Board and Town Council in evaluating land use decisions within the 
Town. 

A comprehensive land use plan examines the social, economic and physical aspect of a 
community’s growth, and is based on technically sound background studies of social, economic 
and physical conditions. A land use plan should be comprehensive in time, scope, and geography. 
A comprehensive land use plan should include written findings and policies governing community 
growth and development. Findings and policies should be based on a reasonable technical 
foundation and the technical studies themselves should be reasonably scientific and accurate. 
NCGS § 160A-383(e) indicates that a “comprehensive plan” includes development ordinances 
(such as zoning regulations, zoning map, and subdivision regulations) and any other officially 
adopted plan that is applicable. Other plans that have been adopted by Town Council that would 
be included in a comprehensive plan are the Town’s Strategic Plan, the Reems Creek Greenways 
Feasibility Study, and the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

The Town’s current comprehensive land use plan was adopted in 2012 and is in the process of 
being updated. 
 
 



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN PROJECT  
OVERVIEW AND TIMELINE: 



WHAT ARE OUR CURRENT 
DEMOGRAPHICS? 







WHAT ARE OUR GROWTH TRENDS? 

TYPES OF ZONING PERMITS 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Residential – Combined 49 27 

Residential – New Construction 50 61 227 

Residential – Renovation 29 41 48 

Commercial – Combined 4 4 

Commercial – New Construction  2 5 1 

Commercial – Renovation 6 13 22 

Total Zoning Permits Issued 53 31 87 120 299 

ZONING PERMITS ISSUED BY THE TOWN: 



WHAT ARE OUR GROWTH TRENDS? 
 RESIDENTIAL: 
o The majority of new economic development within the Town over the last decade has been residential in nature. 

This has resulted in an estimated current housing stock of approximately 2233 houses, an increase of 68% since 
2010. The current median housing value is $335,000.   

o It is expected that economic development will continue to skew towards residential development and the 
commercial development needed to support those residences.  

o Both the current Comprehensive Land Use Plan the Town’s adopted  Strategic Plan recognize this trend and 
encourage the diversification of housing options within the Town.  
 
 

  
 

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL: 
o The Town has a thriving Historic Main Street which contains a nice variety of retail 

establishments, art galleries, restaurants, and offices.  
o Other commercial areas are found on Weaver Boulevard, Merrimon Avenue and 

the five points area of North Main Street. Some of the commercial developments 
continue to have property available for sale or lease and have not been able to 
secure such development.  

o The Town has struggled to maintain the industrial enterprises operating within the 
Town.  



WHAT ARE 
FACTORS 
IMPACTING 
GROWTH? 

ANNEXATION 

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 

PUBLIC UTILITIES 

DEMAND 



WHAT ARE THE FACTORS IMPACTING 
GROWTH? 

 ANNEXATION: 
oThere are 3 ways in which the Town can expand its borders: Voluntary Annexation, Involuntary 
Annexation, and by NC Legislative Action. 

oIn 2012 the NC Legislature amended its laws making involuntary annexation much harder to 
accomplish in that it requires a majority vote of the properties affected. The vast majority of 
growth of the Town’s borders now occurs with voluntary annexation of properties wishing for 
access to the Town’s public water system. 

oThe Town is currently comprised of 2035 acres which is approximately 3.18 square miles. 
Approximately 38 acres within the Town is “satellite” annexation, or not contiguous to the 
Town’s primary municipal limits. This is less than the 10% cap that North Carolina has set for 
satellites. 



WHAT ARE THE FACTORS IMPACTING GROWTH? 

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE: 
There are 3 types of roads in North Carolina and in the Town: private roads, Town/City roads, and 
State roads. The Town’s main thoroughfares (Merrimon, Main Street, Weaver Boulevard, Reems 
Creek Road, Monticello Road) are all State roads that are maintained by NCDOT. The Town 
maintains approximately 19 miles of streets within its borders. Many subdivisions located within 
the Town maintain private roads. 
The Town upgrades its streets based upon a Street Improvement Program which evaluates the 
conditions of streets based on stated criteria in order to objectively determine which streets are 
improved and when. The average life of a paved street is 15 – 20 years and is affected by weather 
and traffic. To adequately maintain the Town’s street system the Town must repave approximately 
1 mile per year. The Town’s current budget includes $400,000 for street improvements in 2019. 



WHAT ARE THE FACTORS IMPACTING 
GROWTH? 

 PUBLIC UTILITIES: 
Water and sewer availability directly influences where development is likely to occur. 

The Town provides public water through its operations of a Water Treatment Plant located along 
the Ivy River. The Water Treatment Plant has a current operating capacity of 1.5 million gallons of 
water per day. The plant began operations in 1998 and was designed and permitted for expansion up 
to a total of 4 million gallons per day. Through approximately 66 miles of water lines and 2769 water 
meters the Town, on average, produces approximately 565,000 gallons of water per day. The Town 
provides public water to properties inside the Town’s municipal limits and to properties adjacent to 
the Town’s limits in the Reems Creek Valley and in areas along US Highway 19/23 North towards 
Madison County. Outside water customers pay double water rates.  

In all of Buncombe County public sewer is provided by the Metropolitan Sewerage District (MSD) of 
Buncombe County. The Town of Weaverville has a representative on the MSD Board in order to 
ensure good communication between MSD and the Town. Certain development can be support by 
private septic systems but large scale residential development and commercial/industrial 
development requires access to public sewer.  
 

  



WHAT ARE THE FACTORS IMPACTING 
GROWTH? 

 DEMAND: 
 Over the previous decade the Town has experienced very limited interest in further industrial 
development.  

 New commercial development has also been limited with the vast majority of commercial 
development utilizing existing buildings rather than new construction.  

 On the other hand, a large amount of residential development has occurred in the form of single 
family residential and multifamily residential development. Some of the single family residential 
development has been permitted at a higher density than standard zoning districts would allow 
(by issuance of special use permits), pointing to an area that should be studied from a policy 
standpoint.  

  



HOW DOES 
THE TOWN 
REGULATE 
LAND USE? 

ZONING MAP AND DISTRICTS 

ZONING REGULATIONS 

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

LAND USE REVIEW PROCESS 



HOW DOES THE TOWN REGULATE LAND USE? 
 ZONING MAP AND DISTRICTS:  

  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conditional zoning districts are also available if a particular use is either not allowed in a district 
or does not easily fit within the underlying standard zoning district. 

DISTRICT DESCRIPTION 

R-1 Primary Residential District (single family) 

R-2 Transitional Residential District (single family and low density multifamily) 

R-3 General Residential District (single family, low density multifamily, and 
manufactured housing) 

R-12 Multi-Unit Residential District (low density and high density multifamily) 

C-1 Central Business District (highly regulated and restricted commercial use) 

C-2 General Business District (general commercial use) 

I-1 Industrial District (general industrial use, outdoor storage/sales) 



ZONING MAP 
 



HOW DOES THE TOWN REGULATE  
LAND USE? 

 ZONING REGULATIONS: 
The Table of Uses within the zoning ordinance (Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances) 
establishes uses that are permitted, permitted with standards, or permitted with issuance of a 
conditional zoning district. 
General regulations also include the following: 

LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS 
EXTERIOR LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS 
PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
SIDEWALK REQUIREMENTS 
SIGN REGULATIONS 

 
 
 



HOW DOES THE TOWN REGULATE  
LAND USE? 

 SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS: 
Subdivision approvals are administrative in nature, meaning that a subdivision that complies 
with the stated requirements must be approved whether there is objection to the project or 
not. Subdivision regulations (Chapter 25 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances) provide for review 
and approval of preliminary plats and final plats for minor subdivisions and major 
subdivisions and set out specific requirements. 
Standards require compliance with zoning regulations including: 
 
 

  

MINIMUM LOT AREA 
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 
PROPERTY LINE SETBACKS 
UTILITY AVAILABILITY 
ROAD ACCESS 



LAND USE REVIEW PROCESS: 
  STAFF PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

(P&Z) 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
(BOA) 

TOWN COUNCIL (TC) 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENTS 

Assists with Drafting Review and Recommendation   Review; Public Hearing; 
Legislative Decision 

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 
TEXT AMENDMENTS 

Assists with Drafting Review and Recommendation   Review; Public Hearing; 
Legislative Decision 

SUBDIVISION APPROVAL – 
MINOR 

Review and Decision Review and Recommendation   

SUBDIVISION APPROVAL – 
MAJOR 

Review Review and Recommendation   Review; Public Hearing; 
Decision 

ZONING PERMITS –          
NON-DISCRETIONARY 

Review and Decision       

APPEALS FROM ZONING 
ADMINISTRATOR DECISIONS 

Forward to BOA   Quasi-Judicial Hearing; Decision   

SPECIAL USE PERMITS – 
APPLICATION OR AMENDMENT 

Reivew and Forward to BOA Quasi-Judicial Hearing; Decision 

VARIANCE APPLICATIONS Review and Forward to BOA   Quasi-Judicial Hearing; Decision   

REZONING REQUESTS Review and Forward to P&Z Review and Recommendation   Review; Public Hearing; 
Decision 

CONDITIONAL ZONING 
DISTRICT APPLICATIONS 

Review and Forward to P&Z 
and TC 

Review and Recommendation   Review; Public Hearing; 
Legislative Decision 



QUESTIONS 
AND PUBLIC 
INPUT? 

WHAT SHOULD WE PROTECT, PRESERVE OR 
ENHANCE? 

WHAT SHOULD WE AVOID OR PROHIBIT? 

WHAT ARE DEVELOPMENT ISSUES WE 
WILL FACE WITHIN THE NEXT FEW YEARS? 

WHAT HAS AND HAS NOT WORKED 
WITHIN THE LAST FEW YEARS? 



Town of Weaverville  
Planning Department 

James Eller, Planning Director 
jeller@weavervillenc.org 

828-484-7002 



From: Jennifer Jackson
To: Al Root; Doug Jackson; Dottie Sherrill (dsherrill452@gmail.com); Dottie Sherrill; Andrew Nagle; Patrick

Fitzsimmons; Jeff McKenna
Cc: Selena Coffey; James Eller
Subject: RE: Land Use Information and Input Session
Date: Tuesday, March 26, 2019 7:38:51 PM

Our scheduled land use information/input sessions are just about completed. We thought you would
be pleased to know that we had a total of over 60 people in attendance (over the 2 sessions), not
including the several members of Town Council, Planning and Zoning Board, Board of Adjustment
and staff. These sessions were active discussions and provided a good opportunity to not only inform
our citizens about land use and other related matters but to also receive valuable input from our
community members.
 
Thanks to all that put the word out and to those that were able to attend.
 
Jennifer
 

From: Jennifer Jackson 
Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2019 3:01 PM
To: Al Root <aroot@weavervillenc.org>; djackson@weavervillenc.org; Dottie Sherrill
(dsherrill452@gmail.com) <dsherrill452@gmail.com>; dsherrill@weavervillenc.org;
anagle@weavervillenc.org; pfitzsimmons@weavervillenc.org; Jeff McKenna
<jmckenna@weavervillenc.org>
Cc: Selena Coffey <SCoffey@weavervillenc.org>; James Eller <JEller@weavervillenc.org>
Subject: Land Use Information and Input Session
 
James and I are finishing up our first land use information/input session. We had 18 members of the
public plus some staff, Planning and Zoning Board members, the Mayor and Councilman
Fitzsimmons also in attendance. James fielded lots of good questions and there was good
conversation with many of those in attendance.  So far we have been requested to present to the
Lake Louise Preservation Association and the Reems Creek Golf Community.
 
Thank you to all that attended. We look forward to another session on Tuesday, March 26 from 5pm
to 8pm.
 
Jennifer O. Jackson
Weaverville Town Attorney
 
30 South Main Street
Weaverville, NC 28787
(828) 442-1858
 


